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Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report

Business overview

Pirewood Group Limited ("Pinewoad” or the "Group”) is the leading independent provider of the real estate required to produce
screen based content In addition, Pinewood offers services that support the screen based mdustnes ncluding digital content
services

The Group has historically had two reporting segments — Media Services, which provides studio facilibes and related production
services to the screen-based industnes, and Media Investrnent, which provides investment funding and production sennces to
the screen-based inclusiries

The Media Servicas segment principatly generates revenue from Film, Television and Media Hub activities through the provision
of rental, ancillary and other production senices.

In tine with its strategy to focus on the core business, in year ending 31 March 2017 the Group ceased certamn activibes, namely,
the Media investment segment activities and Pinewood Creative and sold its eritire interest in the Pnewood TV jont venture

‘The ceased aclivihes do not meet the defintion of discontinued operations as they have not been disposed of.

Business review

Media Services tumover:

Media Services had total tumover within this segment of £79.7m for the year (year ended 31 March 2017 E£76 1m), exdiuding
£0.3m of mtersegment tumover (year ended 31 March 2017, £0.6m) Intersegment turnover refates to tumover generated from
the utiksation of the Company’s core services by the Group's wholly-owned Fim Produchon Companies (‘FPCs") Stage
occupancy for the year ended 31 March 2018 was 93% (year ended 21 March 2017, 81%). The largest fim production at
Pinewood Studios was Solo A Star Wars Story {Lucasfilm) and at Shepperton Shudios was Mamma Mia! Here We Go Again
(Urwversat)

Media investmernt urmover:

The Media Investment segment (trading as “Pihewood Pictures”) included an agreement to source and advise on film, high-end
television and video garne investment opportunites for two media development funds, 2 £25m fund established by the Isle of
Man Treasury and a £30m fund established by the Weish Govemment. In addition, the segment Involves centification and
investment by the Group in British qualifying film and high-end television productons.

Media Investment turnover for the year was £2.0m (year ended 31 March 2017 £22.3m).

The year on year decrease is prncipally drven by a decrease m Film Production Company ("FPCT) activity (£1.3m n the year
ending 31 March 2018 versus £20.0m i 2017). A FPC 1= considered actve from the close of film financing until the production
is completed and delivered The operating loss from FPC activity of £0 3m (year ended 31 March 2017: £2.2m) was offset by

UK film tex refief of £0 3m (year ended 31 March 2017: £1.8m) as expected

In 2017, management decided to ceese all activities relating to Media investment

On 31 October 2017 the Group’s Collaboration agreement with the Welsh Govemment was terminated and on 25 October 2017
the Group ceased providing investrment advisory services to the [sie of Man Treasury.



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued)

Business review {continued)

Cost of sales
Cost of saies expenses decreased from £63.9m in the year ending 31 March 2017 io £42.9m in the year ending 31 March 2018
predominantly due to the cessation of the Media investment activity

SeNng&Dismbwmuosfs
Selling and Di 1 decreasad to £2.1 mullion in the year ending 31 March 2018 from £2 3 million in the year
ending:ﬁ March 2017 Thmmspnn‘nnlydueademmsﬂtffcostsandprdmmmos

Administrative expenses frorm recurring activities

Administrative expenses decreased to £7 7 million in the year ending 31 March 2018 from £10 2 millon in the year ending 31
March 2017, which we primarily stinbule to 2 decrease in staff costs in reiation 1o reduced employee headcount, and the expiry
of our long-term incentive plan

Exceptional Hems

The Group chscioses as exceptional tems on the face of the income statement those items which, because of the natre and
expected mirequency of the events giving nse 1o them, merit separate disclosure to allow users of the financial statements to
better understand the elements of financial performance I the year, 3o as 1o facilitate companson with prior periods and to
better assess trengs mn financial performance

The Company generated net exceptionel operating mcome of £0.5m (year ended 31 March 2017 costs of £3.2m), as detailed n
Note 3.

Income from Parlicipating interests

income from participeting interests in the year ending 31 March 2018 was £3 1m compered to £1 1m in the year ending 34
March 2017. Expansiona in Atianta along with the calculation of income from participating interests betng on & gross, as
apposed to net of tax, basis ane the primary reasons for the increase, see note 8.

Interest receivable and simiar income
Interest receivable and similer ncome increasad from £0_3m in the year ending 31 March 2017 to £3 & million in the year ending
31 March 2018 reflecting interest chargeable on the loan to panent and receipts on loan notes releted to Pinewood MBS

interest payadie and similar charges

Interest payable and similar charges increased from £5 2 milkon in the year ending 31 March 2017 to £6.1 million n the year
ending 31 March 2018 which we prmanly attribute 10 loan interest payeble on the Groups debt and includes the impact of the
refinancing

Tax on peofit on ordinary activities

The tax charge on profit on ordinary actrvities mcreased from £1 4 million in the year ending 31 March 2017 to a £5.9 million
charge in the year ending 31 March 2018 primarily attributable to the reduction of the UK Film Tax Rebef credit receivable due
to the cessation of the Media Investment activity, increased taxable profit and income from participating interests being on a
gross, as oppoaed to net of tax basts, see note 8.

Exchange diferences on transiaton of foreign operations on consofidation
Exchange differences resulted i an other comprehensive loss of £0 8m in the year ending 31 March 2018 (2017 gain £1.3m)
predorminantly from transiation of the Atlanta jont venture

Property plam and equspment
The Group had property, plant and equipment with a net book value of £233 4m as at 31 March 2018 {as at 31 March 2017
£238m} The movernent rulates to additions of £6 3m offset by depreciation of £5 8m

In June 2017, the Group acquired Laleham Nurseries, 3 ha of land adjacent to Shepperion Studio’s backliot Together with the
purchase of 13 ha of land eariier i the year, the acquisition provices the Group with a total of 50 ha for the design of a new
masterplan for Shepperton Studios.

In September 2017, South Bucks District Council granted full pianning permssion for Pinewood East Phase 2 In December
2017, three construction firms participated 1n a lender process 1o appont the mein contractor for the Pinewood East Phase 2
development The preferred contractor was selected in February 2018

interests in joint ventures
For detsits see note 8.

Financial instruments hedd af faw value through profit and oss

For dedails of financial nstruments which includes other investments of £1 7m at 31 March 2018 (2017 £1 2m), loan notes.
receivable of £2 7m as at 31 March 2018 (2017 £2.5m) and derivative fimancial instrurnents £1 Bm payable as at 31 March
2018 (2017 £3.7m payabie) see note 16

Trade and other recenvables

Tracie and other receivables have increased from £19 7m as at 31 March 2017 to £155 6m as at 31 March 2018 predominantly
due to a £1286m lcan issued o 1he parent, an inCrease on trade recervables in the Media Services segment of £14 6m due to
the timing of cash receipts partially offset by the reduced recenvables in the media mvestment segment of £4m followang the
cessation of achvihes



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables have decreased by £4 9 as at 31 March 2018 to £48 8m from £53 7m as at 31 March 2017
predominantly due to the cessation of Media investment activity, the settiement of previously accrued ioss of office payments
and the exceptional release of a rent free accrual offset by an increase in deferred income.

Refinancing

On 13 December 2017, a refinancing of the Group was compieted At this date, the Group's exssting drawn senior facilies,
which were £87.5 million, were repaid in full and £250 million of mew 3.75% Semor Secured Notes due 1 December 2023 were
issued. Pinewood Group Limited advanced a £127.5 miflion loan on to s Parent (Piciure Holdco Limited). On 13 December
2017, the Group secured a super senior revolving credit facility of £50m which s available to draw down untd 1 May 2023 with
Barctays plc, Credit Suisse AG London Branch, HSBC Bank pic and Lioyds Bank pic. The Group terminated rts existing £35
million muli-currency revolving credit faciiity and its £5m overdraft facility

Cash and cash equivalents .
Cash and cash equivalents increased to £43 Om at 31 March 2018 from £28.5m at 31 March 2017. Cash flow from operating
activities, before changes in working capiial, in the year to 31 March 2018 of £38.5m (2017 £24.3m) has been partally offset by
the movernents in working capitat described above Cash fiow from investing activibes of £133.9m in the year ending 31 March
2018 (2017 £28.5m) prncipally includes the payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment aiong with a £127.5m loan
to the Parent Cash flow from financing activitees of £130.2m in the year ending 31 March 2018 compares to £22 6m in the year
ending 31 March 2017 pancipally reflecting the impact of the refinancing detailed above and dividend payrnents of £12.0m in the
year ending 31 March 2018 (2017 £3.6m)

Key performance indicatirg
The Group uses a number of key performance mdicators ("KPis”) to monitor the Group's performance, as well as to measure
progress against the Group’s objectives The KPis used are:

31 March 31 March

2018 2m7

£000 £:000

Stage Occupancy 93% B81%
Tumowver (excluding Media Investment ceased) 79,690 76,082
Adjusted EBITDA (see below) 42,338 34,062

Adjusied EBITDA margins 531% 44 8%
Cash generated from operations 23,624 34,571

Adjusted net debt (see below) {207,681} (73,040
Capital expenditure 6,482 31,632

Group profit on ordinary activities after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2018 was £24.4m (2017; £13.6m), inciuding the
impact of excepbonat items and the movement on fair value of financial derivatives

Capital expenditure represents the totai purchase of property, plant and eguipment, investment acquisitions and investment in
Joint ventures as disclosed in the staterment of cash flows adjusted for the moverment in capital creditor.

Reconciliation of profit on ordinary activities after taxation to adjusted EBITDA

31 March 31 March

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 24 358 13,6807

Other interest receivable and sirmlar income (3,773) (344)
Interest payable and sirmilar expenses 6,067 5,284
Tax chame on profit on ordinary activities 5,905 1,436
Depreciation of property, plant and equpment 8,811 8,111
Amortisation of goodwill 560 580
Amortisation of long-term assets - 166
Exceptional tems (549) 3,170
Operating loss attributable to Media Investment - FPC 257 2,164

Operating loss/(profit) attributable o Meda Investment - other 648 (150)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 54 48

Adjusted EBITDA 42,338 34,062




Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)

Reconcillation of adjusted net debt

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 43,043 26,464
Non-aurrent borrowings
Term loan facility - (100,000}
High yieid bond (246,681) -
Asset financing (724) {1.504)
Non-current drawn loan facilities, less curment assets (204,3€2) {73,040}
Secured ioan arrangement costs 1,282 438
Net debt (203,080) (72,602)
Adpustrments:
imerest accrued 3,042 -
Loan issue costs (7.643) (438)
Adusted net debt (207 681) ‘ZS,NO.
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's principal nsks and uncertainties are as follows

Cornmercial and general risk

The Group 12 dependent on demind for production of new screen coment andt film productions. Any changes in dermand for
these produchons or technological developments resuting i decreased demand for oue studios couki have a materiel adverse
effect on our business.

Exit from the European Union

The Board is continuing to monitar ongoing Brexit negotiations and the potential implications for the Group.

Deveiopment nsk

The Group may underigke a number of Gapital expendrures, INGluding in connection with the: further development and
expansion of its exisbng studios; the inability to obtain the necessary permits, the nability to compiete such projects on time or
at all, the inabilty to ganerate the desired returns therefrom or the nability 1o raise addihonal caprial as might be required to
complete such projects could have a matenal adverse sffect on our business, financial condition and results of operations

The Group engages advisors with the necassary sxpenence 10 compiement the Group's in-howuse teams and manage this nsk.

Business continuity and disaster recovery
A rmajor incident such as a fire or an explosion could put people and/or the sites of operation at risk, result in a loss of turnover
and damage the Group's reputation

A dedicated heeith, safety and fire teamn carries out regular risk evaluation A Business Continuity Team is also i place to
ersure that the operational business continues as far as possible in the event of a major incident. The Group has an insurance
portfolio, whnch looks to mitigate potential incidents described. It also invests m information technology and monitors the
adaquacy of its applications 1 use on an ongoing basis

Regulatory and environmentsal risk

We are exposed 10 risks relating 1o regulations and liabibbes arising from our operations and assets including environmental,
health and safety laws and liabilities

Financial risik

The main risi currently arising from the Group's financial instruments is ligundity risk. Interest rate risk, credit nsk, foregn
exchange risk and fiscal mcentives are also considered below.

The Group manages its exposure to liquidity sk at Group level. The Group's objective is 1o maintain a balance between the
continurty of operating and deveiopment funding and fiexbility using cash and a revoiving credit faciiity.

As at the Staterent of financial pos:tion date, the Group has banking facilibes of up to £300.7m, compnsing a £50m revolving
crecit facility, @ £250m high yield bond and an asset financing facility of £0 7m These facilities are secured on certain of the
principal assets of the Group. The revolving credit fackty has one covenant and a range of everds of defauit together with
variable mangns between 132.5 and 232 5 basis points over LIBOR. The asset financing is covenant free and has a fixed
nterest rate of 620 basis points.



Pinewcod Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks and rizinties (cont d)

Inlerest rate nsk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the fair vaiue or future vakes of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates, The Group's exposure 1o the rish of changes in market interest rates relates primarily Lo the Groop's long
term debt obligations with floating interest rates. In order to manage its interest rate risk the Group's policy is 10 have at least
50% of its borrowings al fixed rales of inerest.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk tha! 8 counler-party will not meet iis obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 1o
a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit nsk from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables, and financial
instruments.

Customer credit risk 1s managed across the Group in accordance with policy, procedures and controls relating to customer
credil risk management. The Group trades with recognised, creditworthy third parlies and il is the Group's policy that ail
cusiomers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit venficatn procadures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on &n ongaoing basis to manage the Group's exposure to bad debts.

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group does not hedge against foreign currency exposure due to its minimal exposure to forergn currency movements es its
business 1s conducted priranty in UK sterling. The Board continues lo review this area lo idenlify any potential exposure with

the mcrease in intemnational arangements.,

Fiscal incentives

Changes to tha UK's film, animation, videc games and high end television tax ncentives or an increase of incentives in
overseas jurisdicions could damage the sitractiveness of the UK a5 & destination for fim contenl creatlon.

The Group monilors the cuttural and economic contribution that screen-based industries make to the UK econamy.

Competition risk

The Group competes i an international marketplace and film producers are abie to choose from a number of studios worldwide.
Were other existing studios to invest significantfy, or new sludios 1o be successfully established either in the UK or elsewhers,

his may have a matenal adverse affect on the Group's market share, reduce its bargaining power ih comnerdial hegotiations,
and threaten profitability due ta ongoing operational costs bemg largsly fixed in nature.

The Group continues o invest to ensure thal the expeclations and demand from the industry are met.

Post balance sheet events and future developments

in Seplember 2017, the Group obtained fult consent from the local planning authorities for the development of ¢. 200,000 sq At

of additional studio space ¥ what would be the secorxd phase of construction al Pinewood East. Following a competitive tender

procass, the Group selecled & preferred contraclor to assist m finalising the design of the scheme in advance of a polential start

of the development later in the year,

In June 2018, the Group announced a consultalion process with the relevant local authorities m advance of the potential
_submission of a planning application to secure consent for the expansion of Shepperton Studios. If oblained, the parmission will

secure the polentisl for future growth at Shepperton.

In line with its sirateqy lo focus on the core busmess, in 2017 the Group ceased certsin acthvilies, namely, the Media Investment

segmenl adlivities and Pinewood Craatrve and sold its entire interest in the Pinewocd TV joint venture.

On 26 June 2018, the Group exchanged conlracts for the acquisition of c. 80 acres of land adjacent to Pinewood studios.

I respect of the Media Services segment the Direclors expect the generai level of activily to be maintained ih the forlhcoming
year.

Going Concern

In assessing the going concem basis, the Direclors considered the Group's busimess aclivities, the linancial position of the
Group and the Group's financial risk management objechves and policies. The Group msets its day-to-day working capital
requirements through ts bank facilites. The Group's forecasis and profeciions, laking accourd of reasonably possible changes
in trading performance, economic uncerainty and Brexit, show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its
current facilities.

Information on the Group's Financial risk managamant is included in the Directors' report, and other Principal Risks and
Uncertainties are detailad in the Stralegic report. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries. consider that the Group
has adequale resources to continue in the operalional business for the foresesable fulure and have therefore conlinued o
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Approved by the Board and signed on its by,

=

Christopher Naisby
Director
26 June 2018




Pinewood Group Limited

Directors’ Report
The Directars present their annual report and audied financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018

Results and Dividends

Group profit on ordinary activitios after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2018 was £24.4m (2017: £13.6m), mchuding the
impact of exceptional items and the movement on fair value of financial derivatves.

Dividends totaliing £12.0m were paid dunng the year (2017: £3.6m) The Directors do not recormmend payment of a finsl
chvidend

Directors
The Directors, who served dwing the year and to the date of sigring, uniess otherwise indicated were as follows:

Ivan Dunleavy (resigned 24 Apnl 2017)
Paul Goiding

Luis Moner Paira

Christopher Nesby

Nathan Shee

Nicholas Smth (resigned 24 April 2017)
Andrew Srnith

Akson Trewartha

Directors’ Liabllities

The Company has granted an indemnity to one or more of its Directors agamst kability brought by therd parbes, subject to the
conditions set out In the Companies Act 2006  Such qualifying therd party indemnity provision remams i foroe a3 at the date of
approving the Directors' Report.

Empiloyees

The Group actively considers the position of its employees’ mmmmmwmmmmm
practices in the areas of recruitment, trairung, weltare, remuneration and employee redations

In addition to a pubkshed grievance policy, the Group maintains a "Whistleblower’ policy providing an opportunity for employees
10 raise grievances with senior management

The Group's stmted policy on Equal Opportunibes recognises the dversity of individuals and has procedures in place o ensure
that recrutment and promotion recognises such diversity and s not biased by conswderation of age, gendes, disabiity, colour,
racial ongn, refigeon or sexual onentation. We provide employees with reasonabile condibons of employment and career
prospects

The Group supports its disabled employees with regular training and support through the equal apportunity and traming polices.

The Group has reguiar contact with employees via its ntranet site, Spofiight, and via regutar catch ups and briefings These
mathads are used to ensure empioyees are kept up to date with the performance of the business. in addition, the Group
continuously manages smpioyees' parformance

Investing n skiis, trammng and development remanns a high priofty for the Comparty. 21 Pinewood empioyees have completed
the Pinewood Studo Management Diploma course and further 11 ane currently studying for the Diploma. The Diploma equsps
candidates with the knowiledge and skills 10 manage and operate workl class studio facilities to the scresn-based mdusines. The
course was supported by Creative Skilset’s Fiim Skilts Fund, with BFI's Fiim Forever National Lottery funds. The Group aiso
has a well-developed work apprenticeship scheme providing ‘in work’ apprenticeships in arsas such as plumbing, carpentry and
media apprentices The Company currently has 12 apprentices whose training 1s paid for by the Apprenticeship Levy

Pinewood's commutment to skills and trairung was acknowledged by winning the Apprentice and Young Person Empioyer of the
Year Award at the 2018 Buckinghamshire Business Awards,
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Directors’ Report (continued)
Branches outside of the United Kingdom

The Group operates through various subsidiary undertakings in vanous jurisdichons as disclosed 10 Note 4 to the Parant
Company financial statements. The Company does not have any branches as defingd by Section 1046(3) of the Cormpanies
Act 2006

Going Concern

As outlined within the Strategic Report on page 5, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concem bass
of accounting In preparing the financial statements, ag there are no matenal uncertainties related to events or conditions that
may cast doubt on the abiity of the Group to continue as a going concern,

Other Directors’ Report Disclosura Requirements

Certain disclosures required by s414C(11}) of the Companies Act 2006 1o be included in the Directors Report have been
included elsewhers in this Annual Report, as follows

= Pnncipal activites - Strategic Report, page 2

- Pnnaipal nisks and uncertainties - Strategic Report, pages 5.6
+ Post balance sheet avents - Strategic Report, page 6

« indication of future developments - Stratagic Repont, page 6

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ report are listed on page 6 Having made
engunes of fellow Directors and of the Group's auditor, each of these Directors confirms that

o] Ta the best of each Director's Knowledge and beiief, there is no information refevant to the
preparation of thewr report of which the Group's auditor is unaware, and

o Each Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware
of relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor ts aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowisions of Section 418 of the Compantes Act
2006

Deloitte 1L P have expressed ther willngness to continue in office as auvditors and a resolution 10 reappoint them will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting .

Approved by the Board and signed on its befalf by

Il

Company Secretary
26 June 2018
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strateqic Report and the Directors’ Report and the financial staternents \n
accordance with applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statemaents for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
elected 1o prepare the finanaal statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of ifeland  Under company law the Direclors must nol approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss for that period In
prepanng those financial statements, the Directors are required to.

o select sutabie accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
o make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

=] state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disciosed and explained i the financial statements, and

[+ prepare the financial statemients on the going concern basis uritess it is inapproprate to presume that
the Group and the Company will confinue in business

The Directors are responsible for Reeping adegquaté accounting reconds that are sufficent to show and expfain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financisd position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonabie steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties
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independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of Pinewood Group Limited

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements:

~ give a true and far view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the
group's profit for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdorm Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 “The Financiel Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Repubiic of ireland”; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited (the ‘parent company’) and its subsicharies (the ‘group”)
which comprise:

« the Group Statement of Comprehensive income,

~ the Group Statement of Financial Position;

+ the Group Statement of Cash Flows,

« the (Group Statement of Changes in Equity,

~ the related notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1 to 26;

- the Parent Company Statement of Financial Posibon,

« the Parent Company Statements of Changes i Equity, and

« the related notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements 1 to 12.

The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparation is applicable law and United Kmgdom Accounting
Siandards, iIncluding Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubdic of
Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibdities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the firancial
staternents section of our report.

We are mdependent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirerments that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a bases for our opimon

Conclusions relating to going concem

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where

+ the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparaton of the financial statements s not appropriate; or

+ the directors have not disciased in the financial statements any identified materai uncertaintes that may cast significant doubt
about the group's or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concemn basis of accounting for & period of at
least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authonsed for issue

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other informaton. The cther information comprises the mformation included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other informabon and, except to the extent otherwise explicitty stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, cur responsibility is to read the other informabon and, i doing so,
consider whether the other mformation 15 matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwnse appears to be matenally misstated. If we identify such matenal inconsistencies or apparent material
misstaterments, we are required to determine whether there is a matenal msstaternant in the financial statements or a matenal
musstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal
rmisstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report In respect of these matters

10
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
to the Members of Pinewood Group Limited

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparaton of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal conirol as the directors
determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due
to fraud or error

in preparing the financial staternents, the directors are responsibie for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
reahstc altemative but to do so

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an audrior's report that includes our opinion Reasonable agsurance 1S
a igh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatenent when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal ff, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the bas:s of these
financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilibes for the audit of the financial statemnents is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www frc org.ul/auditorsresponsibilities  This descripbon forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solety 10 the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 18 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fuilest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opintons we have formed.

Report on other legal and reguiatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiron, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit.

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financal statements are
prepared 13 consistent with the financial statements, and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have besn prepared in accordance with applicable iegal requirements

In the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment oblained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic reportt or the directors’ report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report In respect of the followng matters if, in our optnion

+» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retume adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Ao Cmns.

Andrew Evans {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Audttor

Reading

Undted Kingdom

26 June 2018
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Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes

Turhover 2
Cost of Sales
Gross profit

Selling & Oistribution costs

Administrative expanses
Recuning acliviios
Exceptiona! ftems 3

Total administrative expenses
Operating profit 4

Comprising:

Qperating profitfioss) from:

Media Services activities before exceptional items
Media Investment - film production companies
Media Investment - other

Exceptional items 3

Income from participating
nterests

Other interest receivable

and simifar income 9
Interest payabie and

similar expenses 10

Profit on ordinary activities
before taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary
activities 11

Profit on ordinary activities
after taxation attributable to
equity shareholders

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

on consolidation
Total comprehensive incormne for the year

£'000
81,863
{42,933)
38,730
(2,118}
{7,668)
549
(7.119)

29,493

3,064
3,773

(6,067)

30,263

{5,905)

(554)
23.804

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these financial staterments
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Year ended 31 March 2017
£'000

98,343
{63,854)

T 34494
(2,258)

{10,158)
(3.170)

(13,325)

18,911

24,005
(2,184)

3,170)

18,811

1,082

(5.294)
15,043

(1.436)

13,807

1,340
14,947



Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2018

Asagts

Non current assets
Intangible ssssts

Property, plant and eguipment
Interests in joinl ventures
Other investments

Current assels
Inventories
Trade and other recelvables:
Dlue within ene year
Due after more than one year
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Shars capital

Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Merger reserve

Tranglation reserve

Retained samings

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
intarest-bearing icans and bomowings
Detivative financial instruments
Daferred tax liabilities

Cuerent Habilities
Trade and other payables

Total llabilities
Total aqulty and liabilitles

Notes

13
14

15

7
17
18

21
22
11

23

2018
£o00

3924
233,441
10,974
1,650
250,018

61

18,599
129,045
43,043
193,748

448,764

5741
76,698
135

48
786
85,277
148,923

246,123
1,781
3,115

251,019

48,762

48,762

299,784
-.--—-L-—“ Y54

2017
£000

4,484
236,020

7,780

1,220
249,504

53
19,748

28464
48,266
297 10

5,741
76,606
135
s
1,340
52,869
137,129

101,066
3,687
2,227

108,980

53,661
53,661
160,641
257,770

The financial stataments of Pinewood Group Limited (registered number: 03880552) were approved and authorised for issue

Director

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of thess financial statements.
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by the Boand of Directors on 26 Jjune 2018, They were signed on its behalf by:

€ J Naisby C 4/\
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Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes

Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Adjustments to reconcile profit on ordinary activities before taxation to net cash fiows:
Depreciation, impairment and amortisation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Fair value adustment on PMBS Holdings

income from participating interests

Interest receivable and similar income

Inmerest payable and simiar charges

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 17
(Increase) in inventories

(Decrease)increasa in trade and other payables 23
Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Corporation tax recetved in respect of FPC activity
Coarporation tax paid

Net cash fiow from operating activities

Cash flow used in investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Movemnent in long term liability

Investment in joint ventures

Joint venture land sate proceeds
Repayment from jont ventures

Loans made to parent undertakings

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities:

Oividends paid 12
Proceeds from issue of loan notes 21
Repayment of asset financing obligations

Repayment of bank borowings 21
Proceeds from bank borrowings 21
Payment of loan issue fees

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18

SO@W L

2018 207
£'000 £000
30,263 15,043
9,374 8,885
54 -
{460} (3,488)
{3.064) {1,082)
3773 (344)
6,067 5,264
38,453 24,310
{8,1586) 981
8} (6}
{6,670) 9,686
23,624 34,971
{2,687) (4,2098)
56 -

- 4,473
{2,809) (2,243)
18,284 32,903
{7.736) (30,348)

- 765

(196) (1.906)

- 1,187

1,533 1,841
(127,474) .
(133,873) {28,461)
{11.950) (3.614)
250,000 -
(870} (747)
{100,000) -
- 27,000
(7,012) -
130,168 22,630
14,579 27,081
28,464 1,383
43,043 28,464

included within the cash and cash equivalents balance 1s a total of £390,000 (2017 £1,485,000) which Is unavailable for general

use See Note 18.

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these fnancial statements
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Pinewood Group Limited

Recongciliation of Movement in Net Debt

for the year ended 31 March 2018 2018 2017
£°000 £'000
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,579 27,081
Repayments of bank borrowings 100,000 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings - {27.000)
Proceeds from issue of loan notes {250,000) -
Repeyments of asset financing obligations 750 747
Loan issue costs 7,643 -
Amortisation of loan 18sue costs {438) (649)
Interest accrued on ican notes {3,042) -
Movement in net debt {130,478) 17¢
Net debt at the start of the year (72,602) 72.781)
Net debt at the end of the year X ,602)
Net debt at end of year excluding restricted cagh 1!53,176] iﬂ.ﬁ;!i
Group Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Transiation
Share capital Share premium reserve Other re: ined Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
At 01 April 2017 5741 76.698 1,340 483 52,869 137,129
Profit for the year - - - - 24 358 24 358
Translation reserve movement - - {554) - - (564)
Total comprehenarve income for
the year - - (554) - 24, 358 23,804
Equity dividends (Note 12) - - - - (11.950) (11,950)
At 31 March 2018 LA " 75,696 T66 By —EEZTT 14858
At 01 Apnl 2018 5741 76,696 - 483 42,876 125,796
Profit for the year - - - - 13,807 13,607
Translation reserve movernent - - 1,340 - - 1,340
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 1,340 - 13,607 14,947
Equidy dividends (Note 12) - - - - {3,614) (3,614)
At 31 March 2017 3,741 76,606 1,330 483 52,860 137128

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these financial statements.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Pinewood Group Limsted ("the Company”) is a private company ltmited by shares incorporated and domiciled in England The
registered office 1s located at Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, lver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SLO ONH

The Group's principal activittes and the nature of its operations are detaled in the Strategic Report on page 2

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summansed below. They have all been applied consistentty throughout the current
year and prior year

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ ("fRS 1027) and the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006, ncluding the
provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Comparies and Groups {(Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008, and under
historical cost convention, madified to include the revaluation of freehold properbes and to mclude certain financial
nstruments at far value

The financal statements are presented in Steriing, which is aiso the functional currency of the Group Monetary amounts
n these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000 except where otherwise indicated.

Going concem

In assessing the going concem basis, the Directors considered the Group's business activibes, the financial pasition of the
Group and the Group's financial risk management objectives and palicies. The Group meets its day-to-day working
capdal requirements through its bank facilities, The Group’s forecasts and projechons, taking acoount of reasonably
possible changes in trading perforrance, economic uncertainty and Brexit, show that the Group will be able to operate
withm the level of its current facilies The Direciors, having made appropriate enquines, consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in the operational business for the foreseeable future and have therefore continued to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Baglis of consofidation

The consolidated financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Group and its subswdianies up to 31 March
2018.  All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated i fuil on consolidation. A subsidiaries
are consolidated for the financial year ending 21 March 2018 regardiess of the individual entiies’ statutory reporting date
Indivdual entities within the Group that have a functonal currency other than sterling are transiated to sterling so that the
consolidated financiat staternents may be presented



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuad)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting pelicies (continued)

Turnover

Tumover 1s recognised to the extent that it Is probable that the economic benefits will fiow 1o the Group and the tumover
can be rehably measured. Turnover 1s measured at the far vaiue of the consideration receivabie, net of discounts,
rebates, VAT and other saies taxes or duty The Group has assessed iis turnover arangements and has concluded that it
1S acting as a principal in all of its tumover arangements. Where a contract spans an accounting cut-off date, the value of
the tumover recogrised 15 the time proportion of the total value of the contract compieted by the cut-off date. The
following specific recogrition criteria apply.
Media Services
o Fitm custormers utikse services for a period of tme. Turnover 18 recognised aa the
Group eams the right to consideration for the service provided and ths is time apportioned and
eamed as time elapses.
© Film tumover is also denved from intematonal consultancy agreements and sales and
marketng agreements. Revenue is recognised on a stage of completion basis, by reference to
costs mecurred for the former, and based on the passage of time for the latter
o Television hanover is derived from the provision of services and is recogrised on a tme
apportioned bass i retation i the televiaion produchon process
< Media Hub tumover is derived from customens contracting to use the Group's facilibes
for a period of time  Tumover is recognised on a straght fine basis over the term of the agresment.
Media investment.
¢ External investment advisory tumover is derived from the provision of sarvices on a per
film inrvestment bawmis, with tumover from an annual management fee recognised on a straight kne
basis over the course of the year
© Fm Produchon Companies’ tumowver relates to the fundinff provided from the vanous
financers (exchuding loans aganst tax credit, which are recognised as a sabiity on the Group
statemest of financial position). Turnover recogmsed 1s the proportion of completion of the relevant
project.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the iransaction. Mk
&ﬂummmnammnmnwnmsmmbdmmmmmmmmdomwmum
at that date.

The reaults of cverseas operabons are transiated at the average rates of exchange dunng the period and their balance
sheets at the rates nuiing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on translation of the opening net assets
and results of overseas operations are reporied in other comprehensive Income and accumulated N equity (attributed to
non-controlling Interests as appropriate).

Other exchange differences ane recognised in profit or loss in the penod in which they arse except for

0 exchange differences ansing on gams or losses on Non-monetary items which are recognised n other
comprehensive income,

9 Unrealised gains or kisses are recognised in other comprehensive income, and

o in the case of the consolidated financial statements, exchange differences on monetary items
recesvable from or pevable to a foresgn opecation for wiich settiernent 1s neither pianned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recogrused in
other comprehensive income and reported under equity

Empioyee benefits
The costs of short-terrn employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required to
be recognised as part of the cost of stock or are capitaised as an intangible fixed asset or a tangible fixed asset

The cast of any unused entitlerment is recogmsed m the: period in which the employee’s services are recenved
The best estimate of the expendture required to settle an obligation for termination benefits is recogrused immediately as

an sxpense when the Group is demonstrably committed to termnate the employment of an employee or to provide
temwnation benefits



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Pensions and other past-emplayment benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. Contnbutions are charged to the income statemert as they become
payable m accordance with the nuies of the scheme

Interest receivable and payable
Interest receivable and payable is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Corporation tax

Corporation tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable The tax currently payable is based on taxabie
profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of
income of expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liabikty for curment tax 8 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial posdion date,

Corporation tax relating to iterms recognised directly in equity 1% recognised in other comprehensive income and the
statement of changes In equity and not in the income statement

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is reaksed or the Lability
is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the reporting date

Deferred tax labilites are recogmsed in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date Timing differences
are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of mcome and
expenses in tax assessments m different periods from thew recognition in the financial statements Deferred tax assets
are recogrised only to the extent that it 1s probable that they will be recovered by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or
other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax s recognsed on mcome and expenses from subsidianes, asscciates, branches and interests in jointly
controlled entriies, that will be assessed to or allow for tex in a future period except where the company 1s able to contro!
the reversal of the tuming difference and it 1s probable that the timing difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Film fax credits

Film tax credits ane recognised in profit or loss for the period line with the cost incurred over the period of a fim project.
Where the rate of expenditure incurred is not proportionate to the rate of qualifying expenditure, the difference in fiim tax
credits is accrued or deferred on the Group statement of financial position,

Film investments

Film investments are classified as investments at fair value and due {0 the uncertainty of retum on investment are typically
determined to have a £nil fair value The Group reviews the farr value at least annually  Any net changes in far value are
recogriesed in the incorme statement

Intangible assets
Imangible assets, when entified, are capetalised at cost and subsequently amortised over their usefu! economic life,
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
far the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies {continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition is intalty measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
acquirer’s irterest In the net fair vaiue of the dentifiable assets, fiabities and contingent liabilities  Foliowing inrtial
recognibon, goodwill 1Is measured at cost kess any amortisstion or accumuiated impairment loss  Goodwill 1s expected to
have a useful life of 10 years and 1 amorised over that period Goodwill 18 reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired For the purpose of
imparment testing, gooawi is allocated 1o the related cash-generating unit monitored Dy management Where the
frecoverable amount of the cash-generating unit s leas than the carrying amount, including goodwill, an impaimment loss 1s
recognised in the mcome statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost io the Group less accurmulated depreciabon and any mpairment loss.
Cost comprises the aggregate amount pard and the tair value of any other consideration given 1o acquire the asset and
includes costs direcily attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended Depreciaton 1s calculated on all
property, piant and equipment, other than land, from the tima they are available for use on a straght line basis over the
estimated useful life as follows

Freehokl buikdings - 50 years

Freehold improvements - 5 10 25 years

Leasehok! improvernents - shorier of 25 years or the ierm of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and equpment - 3to 10 years

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated

The carrying value of freehold land end buildings within ‘Property, piant and equipment’ in: the staternent of financial
position is based on extermal valuations undertaken by an independent firm of Chartered Surveyors in February 2000 (as
amended in January 2001) and November 2000, on each occasion 1o esisbiish the fair vaives of the Pimewood Studios
and Shepperton Studios businesses acquired. Subsequent 1o these valuahons, which estabhshed the cost o the Group
of freehold land and buildings, additons, disposals and depreciation have been recorded in line with Group accounting
polces,

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impasment if events or changes In circumstances
indicate the carmymg value may not be recoverable, and is wntten down mimediately to the recoverable amount. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed annually and where adjustments are reuired, these are made progpactively.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal of when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising In de-recognition of the asset (caicuiated
as tha difference between the net cesposal proceeds and the canrying amount of the item] s ncluded in the moome
statement in the year the item is derecognised

Interasts in joint ventures
The Group has interests in jomt ventures. A joint venture 1s a joint arrangement whereby two or more partes that have
joint control of the arangement have nghts to the net assets of the arangement.

The Group accounts for jont ventures under the equity method. Under the equity method, a jont venture 1s mrtially
recognised in the Group statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's INcome
from parbcipating interests and other comprehensive income of the jpint venture  When the Group's share of losses of
the Joint vesture excesds the Group's Interest in that joint venture, the Group discontinues recognising ts share of further
losses  Additional losses are only recognised to the extent that the Group has mcurmed legal or constructive obiigations or
made paymenis on behalf of the joint venture

When a Group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and josses resulting from the transactions with the

joint venture ara recognisad in the Group's consolidated financial staternents only to the axtent of interests in the joint
venture that are not related to the Group
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Pinewood Group Limited

Nctes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Long-term assets .
Costs incumed i the establishment of long term agreerments are capitalised on the statement of finantial position and
categorised as long-term assels

These costs are reviewed at least annyally for any impairmment in their canrying value and once the long-term agreement
becomes operational the costs are amortised over the term of the agreement.

Imparment costs and amortisation are expensed to the Group income statement

Inventories

tnventory is valued at the lower of cost and estmated seiling price less costs 1o compiete and sefl Inventory held for
distribution at no or nominal consideration is measured at cost, adjusied where appiicable for any i0ss of service potential,
i e. benefits expected frorm use or sajle of the nventory Cost is determined using the weighted average cost.

At each reporting date, the group assesses whether inventory are impaired or If an impairment loss recogmised in pror
penods has reversed Any excess of the carmying amount of stock over iis estimated selling price less costs to complete
and sell 1s recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss

Reversais of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired  if any such
indicabon exists, or when annual impasment testing for an asset s required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating urt’s ("CGU") far
value less costs to sell and ts value n use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash infiows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asvet or CGU axceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s considened mpaired and 1s wittten down 10 its recoverable
amount In assessing value in use, the estmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in
determining fair value less costs to sefl, an appropriate valuation moded s used.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial kabilihes are recognised when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of
the mstrument.

Financial liabdtes and equity nstruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
entered into An equity Instrument 1s any contract that evidences 2 residual terest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilthes.

Financial assets and labilities

All financial assets and habilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), except for those
financial assets classified as at fair vaiue through profit or foss, which are initially measured at fair value (which is normally
the transaction price excluding transacton costs), unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. if an
arrangement constities a finance transachon, the financial asset or financial liability 1s measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire of are setiled, b) the Group transfers to another party substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or G) the Group, despite having retaned some sigrdficant nsks and rewards of ownership, has transferred
control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset m its entirety to-an
unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilateralty and without needing to impose additional restrictions on
the transfer

Financial habilities are derecognised only when the obhgation specified m the contract 1 discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consailidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Investments

Investments in non-convertible preference shares and non-putiable ordinary or preference shares (where shares are
publicly traded or their fair value is reliably measurabie) are measured at far value through profit or loss Where farr value
cannot be measured reliably, investments are measured at coat iess impairment

In the Company statement of financiat positon, for Investments in subsidianies acquired for consideration inchuding the
1ssue of shares qualifyng for merger relief, cost is measured by reference to the nominal value only of the shares issued
Any premium is ignored

Equity instruments
Equty instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, cash or other resources.
received o receivable, net of direct issue costs.

Fair value measurement .

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market When quoted prices are
unavailable, the pnce of a recent transaction for an dentical asset provides evidence of fair vajue as long as there has not
been a significant change N economc aircumstances of a significant lapse of time since the transaction took piace. If the
market is not active and necent transachions of an iderntical asset on thesr own are not a good estimate of fair value, the
Company estmates the far value by using a vaiuabon technique

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Qbligahons for foans and borrowings are recognised when the Group becomes parly to the related contracts and ane
rmeasured inthially at the far values of conswderation received less directly attributable transaction costs. After wutial
racogniton, interest-bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently xed at of d cost using the effective
interast method, allocating the interest income or interest exp over the relevant period.

Devivative financial instrumnents

The Group has interest rate swaps to hedge against risks asscciated with interest rate fluctuations. Derivatives are inially
recognised at fair vaiue at the date a dervative contract 1s entersd into and ane subsequently re-measured to their fair
value at each staternent of financsal position date  The Group reports the movement in fair value through profit of loss.

The fair vaiues of the interest rale swap cc are ined by reference to market vaives for smilar instruments.

A derivative with a positive far vadue is recogrused as a financial assed wherees a desivative with a negative fair valua is
recognised as a financial liabikty. A denvative is presented &s & non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of
the instrument & more than 12 monthe and it is not expected 1o be realised or settied withun 12 months  Other derivatives
are presentsd as cument assets or current liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recoghised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructve) as a result of a past evert, itis
probabie that an outflow of economic benefits wil be required 1o settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation

If the effect of the bime value of money is material, provisions are determmed by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the hability. Where discounting 18 used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time s
recognised as interest and similar charges.
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies (continued}

Loases

The Group as lessee - finance foases

An asset and corresponding ligbility are recogrssed for leasing agreements that transfer to the Company substantialy all
of the nsks and rewards incidental 1o ownership (“finance leases™). The amount capitalised s the fair vaiue of the leased
asset or, if kower, the present value of the minimum lease payments payable dunng the lease term, both determined at
inception of the lease Lease payments are treated os consisting of capital ark mterest elements. The interest 1s charged
to proft or Joss so as o produce a consiant penodic rate of interest on the remaming balance of the sabifity. Contingent
rents are expensed as incurred.

Capitaiised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful Ffe of the asset or the lease term.

The Group as lessee - operating leases

All other leases are operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to profit or loss on a straight hne basis over the
lease term. Rent free periods or other incertives received for entenng into an operating lease are accounted for as a
reduchon to the expense and are recognised, on a straght-fine basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor - operating keases

Rental incorne from assets leased under operating keases is recognised on a straighi-line basis over the term of the lease
as Media Services turnover. Rent free penods or other incentives given to the lessee ane accounted for as a reduchion to
the rental income and recognised on a straght-lne basis over the lease term.

Significart accounting judgements, estimates and assimptions
The preparation of the Group's financial staternents requires management to make jidgements, estimates and
assumplions that affect reported amounts at the end of the year

There are no crbcal pdgements, apart from those Involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The key assumptions conceming the
future and other key sources of estimabon uncertainty at the reporting date are:

Fair vaiue of investment in PMBS Holdings Limited

The Group's investment in the equity and loan notes of PMBS Hoidings Linvted is hekd at fair value, The Group was
1ssued equity and loan notes equal to a 15% share of the debt and equity of PMBS Holdings Limred when the initisal
nvestment was made At each reporting date management make an estmate of the fair value of both the vaiue of the
loan notes and the veiue of the equity investment.

In determining the fair value of the loan notes management review the future cash flows attributabie to those ioan notes,
and in determming the fair vaiue of the equity hoiding management perform a value In use axercise, using a discounted
cashfiow model The key inputs in respect of the discounted cashfiow model are the discount factor, the projected annual
cashflows and the annual growth factor applied In the case of the loan notes, these are interest bearing at 8% per
annum and management considers this to be a market rate of interest and ae such are discounted at that rate Further
detaile are included in Note 16

An adverse movement of 17% on the discount factor, or an 40% reduction on the annual cashflows of PMBS, when
apphed to the equity would result in an impairment, and could resuit in the recoverabidy of the loan notes being
considered doubtful.

S1086 kability
In erder to facditate the consiruction of Finewood East, the Group entered into a Section 106 agreement with

Buckinghamsiire County Council Under this agreement the Group must pay for traffic improvements at the lver Heath
Five Points roundabout. These improvements, the implementation of which the Group is currently in discussion with
Buckmghamshire County Council, have been estimated and capitalised at cost. Included in accruals and plant, property
and equipment is £4m (2017 £4m) and £4m (2017 £4m) respectively, relating to this agreement

Affanta joint veniure

The Group's mnvestment in the Atlanta Joint Venture 1s accounted for using the equity accounting method Management
has performed an impairment review of the asset, caleulating & value in use through apphcation of a discounted cashflow
model. Key inputs into the model are the expected levels of occupancy of the studio space, the pnce and the discount
factor applied The assumptions appilied to these factors support the carrying vaiue of the asset A movement in these
factors may have an mpact on that value

Foxed Asset Usefuf Economic Lives

The Group has fixed asséets held at amorhsed cost, the iotal cost of which 1s £309 3m at 31 March 2018 Accumulated
depreciation 1s £67 1m and the charge for the penod 1s £8.8m If the average useful economic ife of the assets was
reduced by 15% the charge would increase by £1 6m

Other eshmates, assumptons and pdgements are appled by the Group These nclude, but are not imited to, accruals

and provisions for impairments of assets These eshmates. assumptions and judgements are also evaluated on &
continual basis but are not significant
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2

Turnover and segment information
Tumover by operating segment

The Group identifies its operating segments based on a combination of factors, including the nature and type of service
pravided and differences in regulatory environment, Operating segments are aggregatad where there 15 & high degree of
consistency across these factors, and the segments have similar economic charactenstics Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the intesnal reporting pravided to the chief operating decision maker

The Group has determined it has two reportable segments, Media Services, which provides studio and related sennices to
the film, television and wider creative industnes, and Media [nvestment, which provides contert investment and
production services, bnncipally to the fitm mdustry

Segment data for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 is presented below

2018 7

£000 £'000
Tumover by segment
Media services 79,979 76,709
Media mvestment 1,973 22,266
Total segmental turnover 81,952 98 975
Intersegment slirmmation {289} 827}
Group tumover 1563 Lt ]

The Group has hrstoncally had two reporting segments — Media Serwices, wiuch provides studio facilibes and related
services to the screan-based indusiries; and Media Investrent, which provides investiment funding and production
services to the screen-based industries

In line with its strategy to focus on the core business, m 2017 the Group ¢ certain activit by, the Media
invesiment sagment activites and Pinewood Creative and soki its entine interest in the Pinewood TV joint venture,

The ceased activities do not meet the definiton of discontinued operatons as they have not been disposed of.
Tumnover by geographical reglon

Although turnover continues to anse predommantly i the United Kingdom, being the Group's country of domicile, the
Group’s international activity contnues 0 increase.

2018 2017
£'000 £'000

United Kingdom 78,975 86,965
North Amenca 1,308 1,282
Asia 1,028 1,741
Rest of the World 352 8,360
ﬂim 35,348

Non current assets by geographical region

The only non current asset dormiciied outside of the UK 1s the interest in joint ventures with a carrying vakie of £11.0m
(2017 £7 8m) see note §.

Turnover by major customers
Turmover from one Media Services customer, operating through several separate subsidiaries, of £35 7m (year ending 31

March 2017. £30.6m) was recognised in the year No other single customer© contributed 10% or more of the Group's
tumaover in edher 2017 or 2018,
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2 Turnover and segment formation {continued)

Year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31 March 2017

Media Media Media

Services Investment Total Services Media Investment Total

Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

Tumover 79,690 1,973 81,663 76,082 22,266 98,348
Cost of Sales {41,367) {1,566) {42,933) {41,470) (22,384) {63,654)
Gross profiti(loss) 38,323 407 38,730 34,612 (118} 34,494
Distributon costs {2,118) . (2,118) (2,258) - (2.258)
Recuring activiies. - . B30 - UMD MR e R Vo BN
Exitplonsl i 3 L) Cos L ARG e B
Totat administrative expenses (5,807 {1,312) {7,119) (11,429) (1,896} {13,325)
(905} 20,925 (2,014} 18,911

COperating profitfloas} 4

30,398

29,493

Income from participating

interests 8 3,064 - 3,064 1,082 - 1,082

Other interest receivable

and swmilar income g 3,773 - 3,773 344 - 344

Interest payabie and

similar expenses 10 {6,067) - (6,067) (5,284) - (5,294)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary 31,168 {905) 30,263 17,057 (2,014) 15,043

Tax on profiv(loss) on

ordinary activities 1" {6,162) 257 (5,905) (3,831) 2,195 {1,436)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary

activities after taxation 25,006 {6438) 24,358 13,426 181 13,607
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3  Exceptional items of (income)expense

2018 2017

£000 £'000
Release of rent free accrual (912) -
Strategic review . 4,045
Restructuring and management consultancy 823 2774
PMBS Holdings Limitad (460} (3,486)
Techmcolour lease surrender - (163)

iEI 1

Release of rent free accrual

Pinewcod Studic Wales signed an agreement for lease for the Weish Studios on 18 July 2014 The agreerment was for a

15 year loase with 2 years rent free In line with accourting convention Pinewood accrued the apphcable proportion of the
full rent during this rent free period. Foliowing the decision 1o exit the Weish Studios this rent is no longer payable and has
been released as an excephonai income statement during the period,

Strategic review
On 10 February 2018 the company announced that it had appointed Rothschild & Co to acvise on a sirategic review of
the Company Expenses incurred in the year to 31 March 2017 relste to professional fees and were £4 Om.

Restructuring and manageinent consullancy

Restructuring recrganisation costs of £0 8im (year ended 31 March 2017. £2 8m) redate to a performance improvement
feview arx! streamiinng and changes to the management siructure, s well as costs inl refation to Finewood Television
Limited and Pinewood Media Guarantors Limsted

PMBS Hoidings Limded

The Comparty has & 15% interest in PMBS Hoidings Limited. The Compary reviewad the carrying value of its interest n
the equity and loan notes at the 31 March 2018 The fair vatue gain recorded 1n the period ended 31 March 2018 in
respect of the equity and loen notes was £0 5m {2017: £3 5m)

Tachmcolor keass surrender
Durning the yaar ending 31 March 2016 the company accepted a surrender of the lease to Technicolor The het income
from the lease surrender, after related expenses, was £nil (yeoar ending 31 March 2017. £0.2m).

4  Operating profiti{loss)

2018 2017
Operating profit/(loas) is stated after charging/(crediting) £000 £:000
Depreciation of property, plant and ecquipment 8811 8111
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equiprment 54 -
Operating lease payments 1,224 1,258
AmortisaBon of goodwill 580 580
Amortisation of long-term assets - 166
w axchange losses/(gains) (18) (10)
- amounts expensead to cost of sales 110 63
- impaurment losses recogrised In cost of sales - -

5  Auditor's remuneration

2018 2047
The analysis of auditor's rernuneration is as foliows: £000 £000
Fees payable to Group's auditor for the audit of Parent
Company and Group financai statements 43 48
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and s associates
for the audit of the Company’s subsidaries 130 105

Total audit fess 178 153

Fees payable 10 the Group's auditor and its associates
for other services

Audit-related assurance services

Orther assurance services

Taxation advisory services 14
Total fees for other services 24

297 10
w7 T
Total fees [ 341 177
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6 Staff costs and numbers
Staff costs inciuding Directors

Salanes

Social secunty costs

Pension costs

Long term incentive plan
Compensation for loss of office
Other employee benefits

Average monthly number of employees,

including Executive Directors:

Managermert
QOperational
Administration
Executive
Technica!
Sales

7 Directors’ emoluments

Salarnes

Pension costs

Long term incentive plan
Cormpensaton for loss of office
Cther employee benefits

2018

12,507
1,305
910

15,032

2018
numbers

2018
£000

551
54

18
623

2017
£000

12,233
1,265

752
2,034
303

17,475

2017
numbers

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accrung under defined contribution schemes was 3 (2017 3)

The emoluments of the highest paxd director were £308,000 (2017 £1,618,000); pensions contributions were £20,000

(2017. £20,000)

The Directors are considered to be the only key management personnel

No share options have been hekd by any Directors in the penod

Amounts paid to third parties in relation to Direciors services in the penod are £0.3m (2017 £0.2m)
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8

Interests in joint ventures

As at 31 March 2018 and at 31 March 2017, the Group had interests in the following joint ventures

Joint Ventiwre Name
Pinewood Atlanta LLC
PAS Holdings Fayette LLC

"PAS" - coliectively, Pinewood Atianta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette
"BTV - Pinewood Television Limited

Registered office address detaits are included in Note 4 to the Parent Company financial staterments

2018

Equity

Profit/(loss)
Group share of profit/(loss)

2017

Equity

Loan note

Total investrment
Less share of losses
Net nvestment

Non-current assets

Current assets.

Non-current habilibes {non-recourse)
Current habilbes

Net assets/(liabilitbes)

Twmcver

Expenses

Profit/(loss) after tax

Group share of prodit/(loss) after tax

Principat
place of *% voting
business % equity interest rghts.
USA 40 50
USA 40 5G
PAS PTV Total
£7000 £000 £000
10,511 - 10,511
480 - 480
10,871 - 10,971
10,971 - 10,971
93,421 - 93,421
2412 - 2,412
(56,345) (56,345)
24,520 58 21,578
14,086 481 14,54
. 7031
AL [ I
PAS PV Total
£000 £'000 £'000
5.681 - 5,681
2,082 822 2714
7,753 622 8375
- 585 585,
102,270 - 102,270
4,850 304 5,244
(65.260) (1127 (66,387)

{12,970y 127} (13,087

18,120 680
(14,170) (725)

18,180
(14,895)

3550 (] 3,285

; [

1,082

The group disposed of their S0% equity interest in Pinewood Television Limited on 26 Seplember 2017 for £nil

consideration

The Group's Interests n pint ventures at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 was as follows.

As at 31 March 2017

Share of profit from joent venture
Investment in joint ventures
Repayment from jont v
Taxation

Foreign currency movement
Other movements

As &t 31 March 2018

27

2018

{1,533)
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10

"

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The value of the joint venture in Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Hoidings Fayette LLC {collectively "PAS") 18 shown gross
of taxation, which has been presenied separately on the staterent of financial position

PAS is a partnershup m the US and therefore the pariners are responsible for tax charges in relation to the entity.
Histoncally the interest in PAS wae shown n the Condensed Group Staternent of Financiai Posdion net of tax however
given the nature of the partnership the amounts in relation to the current and deferred tax have been transferred to current
tax and deferred tax respectively in the current period. This has no impact on net assets Additionally, tax in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s now presented within tex on profit on ordinary actrvities rather than within Income
from participating interests. As the impact on prior penods s immaterial, all amendments have been made prospectively in

the current period

Interest receivabie and similar income

On financial assels measured at amortised cost
Interest receivable from joint ventures

Loan interest receivable

Bank interest receivabie

On financial assets measured at far vakse”
Farr value movements of denvative financial instruments

interest payable and similar charges

On financial mstruments measured at amortised cost.
Bank loan and overdraft interest

Loan interest payable

Fnance fee amortisation

On financial instruments measured at fair value,
Interesti rate hedging
Far value movements of derivative financial insiruments

Not on financial instruments:
Finance lease nterest
Other interest paid

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

{a) Analysis of credit for the year:

Current tax:

UK corporation tax charge

Amounts payable for Group tax loss relief
Foreign corporation tax

Foreign tax suffered

UK film tax relief

Double taxation credit

Amounts under provided in previous years

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Effect of change in deferred tax rates

Amounts (under)iover provided In previous years

Tax charge in the Group
comprehensive income statement

28

2018
£000

30
1,781

1,867

1,906
3,773

20138
£'000

1,683
3,042

5,163
813

813

2017

918

(61}

586
1,843

1.438
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7

‘Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

2018 2017
(b} Factors affecting curent taxation for the year: £000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 30,263 15,043
Profit on ordinary activibes multipied by the siandard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2017 20%) 5,750 3,000
Adjustments i1 respect of:
UK Fiim tax relief (257 (1,792)
Corporation tax overprovided i previous years (352) {1,130
Deferred tax overprovided in previous years (319) 985
Non-allowable depraciation ot buildings 661 404
Profit from joint venture . (263)
Other non-aliowable expenses 121 32
Unrelieved tax losses 32) a8z
Double taxation relief {224) (85)
Overseas tax at different rates 564 156
Land remediation relief (1)) 13)
Deferred tax - effect of taxation rate change 5 (238)
Other adjustments (9) -
5”5 1436
(¢} Deferred tax 2018 2017
£000 £'000
Deferred tax relates 1o the following
Group comprahensive staternent of income.
Deferred tax credit arising on-
Accelerated capital allowances 75 1,167
Short term temporary dferences {230) 178
Tax oases a4 518
Faur value adjustment in respect of SSPP acquistion - (20}
Net deferred tax (creditycharge 111 1843
Charged to Baiance shest
At 31 March i lassification At 31 March
2017 statement (see note B) 2018
Statement of financral position: £000 £000 £000 £'000
Accalerated capital alowances 2,147 75 1,454 3,676
Short term temporary differences 211) {230} (455) (896)
Tax losses (44) 44 - -
Fair value adiustment in respect of SSPP acqusilion 335 - - 335
Net deferred tax liability 2.227 “(111) 990 3116

The deferred tax assets are shown net against the non-current defermred tax liabsity in the statement of financial position.

The mam rate of UK corporation tax reduced to 18% from 1 April 2017 from 20% 1n the previous financial year. A further
reduction to the main rate of UK corporation tax to 17% has been enacted and s effective from 1 Apni 2020 Deferred tax

balances have been calcutated at 17%

At 31 March 2017, a potential deferrad tax asset of £2,000 in respact of £9,000 of non-trading losses n Sauls Farm
Limited and £nil of trading losses in Teddington Studios Limited had not been recognised. During the year, Sauls Farm
Lirsted and Teddington Studics Limited were dissolved and there are no unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of

£9,000 of losses at 31 March 2018.
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13

14

Dividends

2017 Fingl dividend paid at 20.8p per share {2016. 3.2p)
2018 Interim dividend paid at £nil per share (2017° 3 1p)

Intangible agsets

At 31 March 2047 and 31 March 2018

Amortisation

At 31 March 2047
Provided during year
At 31 March 2018

Net book valye
At 31 March 2018
At 31 March 2017

2018
£000

11,850

T 11,980

2017

£'000
1,837
1,777

3,614

Goodwill
£000

5,604

1,120
560

1,650

3,924

——

4,454

— .

Goaodwill has been acquired through business combinations and has been allocated to the Group’s Media Sensices cash-

generating unit

Followang a review for indicators of impairment at the reporting date, it was determined that there were no indicators that

the camying value exceeded the recoverable amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Lease-hoid Fixtures,
Freehoid land  improve-  fittings and Assgets under
and buikdings ments equipment construction Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £7000

Cost
At 31 March 2017 251,389 179 42718 8,787 303,073
Addtions 3,250 12 1,852 1,172 6,286
Reciassficaton 8,490 - 166 {8,658) -
Disposals 160) (12 95 - o
At 31 March 2018 5‘2556‘6 179 44,551 1,508 305,282
Depreciation
At 31 March 2047 38,587 20 28,436 - 87,053
Provided during year 6,144 10 2657 - 8,811
Disposals (11 4) 8) - {23)
At 31 March 2018 44,750 26 31,(65‘ -
Net book valye
At 31 March 2018 218,239 153 13,746 1,303 233 444
At 31 March 2017 212,782 159 14,282 B,787 236,020

Assets under construction at 31 March 2018 and 2017 reiate to costs capitalised in respect of Pinewood East These are
not depreciated. Phase One of the development became operational on 30 June 2016
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15

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Group's long-term loan 1s secured by a floabng charge over the Group’s assets,

included witiin Fixtures, fittings and equipment are assets heid under finance leases with a net book value of £2, 734,000
(2017, £3,214,000) and deprecaton charged in the year of £514,000 (2017: £570,000).

On 26 June 2018, the Group exchanged contracts for the acquisition of ¢. 86 acres of land adjacent to Pinewood studios

Other investments

At 31 March 2017
Revahsation
At 31 March 2018

Fair value

At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Company name Principal Activity
PMBS Holdings Limited Holding company
POP Globa! Limited Film IT services

£'000

1,220
— 40
1,680

1,630
1,220
Country of
Incorporation % equity interest
United Kingdom 15 0%
United Kingdom 12 5%

PMBS Holdings Limsted owns 100% of Pinewood MBS Lighting Limsted, a company that has an exclusive agreement to

provide Lighting facilities at the Group's UK faciities.

The registered office of PMBS Holding Limited 1s' Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, iver Heath, Buckinghamsiwre, SLO

ONH,

The registered offica of POP Global Limited is' 6 Elder Street, London, England, E1 6BT.
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Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss

The carrying value of the Group's financial nstruments measured at fair value through profit or loss at 31 March 2018

were:

2018 2017
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss: £'900 £'000
Other investments {Note 15) 1,680 1,220
Loan notes receivable (Note 17) 2,738 2,531
Falr value at 31 March 2018 4,418 3,751

2018 2017
Financial Habilities measured at fair value through profit or joss: £'000 £000
Detivatives (Note 22) 1,781 3,687
Fair value at 31 March 2018 1=781 3,687

Other investments (Equity)

The fair value of the equity has been calculated by using a discounted cashfiow model The key inputs in respect of the

discounted cashfiow modet are the discount factor of 11%, deemed to be a market ratereﬂecbngthensksassoaatsdmm
the asset, the projected annual cashfiows and an annual growth factor applied of 2.5%,

Loan notes receivable
The fair value cakculations for the loan use esght year incorme projections and assume an 8% coupon on the loan 1s rolied

into the loan balance. The par value of the loan notes 13 £2.7m and the fair value exercse with the assumptions noted
betow results in @ fair value that is i line with this par value. The key assumptions used in the value n use calculations

are:

Disoourit rate

The discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risks specific to the financial instrument. The discount
rate was calculated using the Group's cost of debt. The discount rate used for the year ended 31 March 2018 is 8%

(2017 8 3%)
Income from operations
Income projections are fixed using an interest coupon of 8% on the loan notes
17 Trade and other receivables
2018 2017
£'000 £000
Amourtt falling due within one year:
Trade receivables - Mecsa services 21,118 6,521
Trade recewvables - Film production companies 105 4,125
Prepayments and other receivables 2,638 5,026
Loan notes receivable 2,738 2,531
Carporation 1ax receivable - 1,546
26,599 19,749
Amourtt falling due after more than one year:
Loans due from parent undertakings 129,045 -
129,045 -
155,644 19,749

Loan notes recewvable of £2,738,000 (2017- £2,531,000} are due for repayment by 1 January 2025. Interest, which is
rolled up, is charged at 8% and is payable m June and December sach year.

Loans due from parent undertakings are due for repayment on 1 December 2023 and carry interest charged at 4.05%
(2047 i)
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19

21

Cash and cash equivalents

Includedd within the cash and cash equivalents balance per the staterment of financial position at the reporting dete are
amounts unavailable for general use. These amounts relate to funds reserved solely for use in the produchion of specific
Madia Investment Fiim producton company operations

2018 2017

£'000 £7000
Cash avarabie for general use 42,653 26,909
Restricted cash and cash equivalants 390 1,465
Net cash and cash equivalents 43,043 28,464
Share capital

2018 2017
fssued, calfted up and fully paid £000 £'000
57,409 526 Crdmary shares of 10p each 5,741 5,741

The Ordinary shares, which carry no right 10 fixed income, each camry the nght to one vote at general meetings of the
Compary

Reserves

Share premium
Considerstion received for shares jssued above their nominai value net of transaction costs.

Other reswves
Other reserves represent Capital redemption reserve £135,000 and Merger reserve £348,000.

Capital redemption reseive
The capital redemption reserve represents smounts reserved in accordance with sechon 733 of the Companies Act 2006
releting 1o the canceliation of shares.

Merger reserve

O acquiing Shepperton Studios Limited the Company issued ordinary shanes as part of the consideration Merger refief
was taken in accordance with Section 131 of the Companies Act 1885 (since succesded by Section §12 of Comparnies
Act 2008), and hence £348 000 was credited 10 the merger reserve.

Transiation reserve
Cumuiative effect of the effect of foreign currency transiation of opsrations with a functional currency other than Sterfing n
hnve with the Group's foreign currency transiation accounting policy

Retained earnings
Curmuiative profit arkd ioss net of distnbutions (o owners

interest bearing foans and borrowings

Maturity 2018 2017
- £'000 £'000
Cierent Borrowings
Bank overdraft ()] Annual renewal - -
Non-Current Borrowings
Term loan faciity {in 29 May 2019 - 100,000
Revolving credit facitity W) 1 June 2023 - -
Asset financing {iii} 5 November 2019 724 1,504
Loan notes (v} 1 December 2023 246,681 -
Non-current drawn loan facilibes 247 405 101,504
Secured bank loan arrangement cosis {1,282) (438)

246,123 101,066

Total current and non-current interest-bearing loans
and borrowings. 246,123 101,066
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21 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

The effective interest rates of the above loans and borrowings are: (i) Bank overdraft - base rate plus 2.5% margin; (i)
Tenm loan facility and Revoting credit facility - LIBOR plus vanable margin, (i) Asset finanang - €.2%; (iv) Loan notes -
4.4%.

* At 31 March 2017, the Group had a £100m term loan facility used to fund the construction of Pinewood East During the
year to 31 March 2017, £27m was drawn down on this facility.

©On 13 December 2017, a refinancing of the Group was compieted. At this date, the Group’s exusting drawn senor
facilities, which were £87.5 milion, were repard in full and £250 million of new 3.75% Senior Secured Notes due 1
Decamber 2023 were 1ssued Pmewood Group Limited advanced a £127 5 milhon koan on to its Parent.

Cn 13 December 2017, the Group completed a super senior revotving credit facility of £50m which is available to draw
down until 1 May 2023 with Barciays Bank pic, Credit Suisse AG London Branch, HSBC Bank pic and Lioyds Bank pic.
The Group terminated its existing £35 milion mutti-curency revoiving credit fadility and its £5m overdraft facility

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated net of unamortised issue costs of £7 7 milion  The 1ssue costs are being
amortised over the term of the interest-beanng loans and borrowings to which they relate.

These facilibes are secured on certain of the principal assets of the Group

Asset financing facility

The asset financing facility comprises of both a sterfing chattet morigage facility and a finance lease facility which are over
a fored term with fixed monthly payments and are secured over identfiable assets of an equal value. These assets are
dlassfied as ‘Fixiures, fitings and equipment’ within ‘Property, plant and equipment’ in the statement of financial positon

Borrowing facilities
The available but undrawn committed facilities are as follows:

Within 1

At 31 March 2018: year 1-4 years 5+ years Total

£000 £'000 £000 £000
Facilities:
Revolving credit facility - - 50.000 50,000
Asset financing facifity 559 185 - 724
Locan notes - - - 250,000 250,000
Total facilities 559 165 300,000 300,794
Drawn loans:
Revolving credit facility - - - -
Asset financing facility (559) (165} - (724)
Loan notes - - 250,000 250,000
Total drawn loans (559) 165y 250, ,724)
Undrawn facilities
Revolving credit facility - - 50,000 50,000
Asset financing facility - - - -
Loan notes - - - -
Undrawn committed facilities - - 50,000 50,000
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group's irterest rate swaps are recoghised as denvative finencial mstruments Fair value movements are recogrised
n the INcome statement within interest recervable and similar income

2018 2017
£000 £000

Financial liabilibes carried at fair value.
Non-current derivative financial mstrument habvties 1.781 3,687

interest rate swaps
To mervmise the voiatiity in cash flows from a change in LIBOR, the Group held interest rate swaps designated as hedges
aganst drawn debt obligations as detailed below

2018 2017
Effective interest rate % Maturity £o00 £1000
2 00% *+ variable margin 30 April 2025 25,000 25,000
2.08% + variable margin 30 April 2022 25,000 25,000

i) —

The Group's economc hedges of mierest rate risk are treated as denvative financial instruments and far value
mavements are recognised in the income staternent

The mterest swap finance costs are charged to the ncome statement when the swap is payable The swaps are payable
on a quarterly bems

Trade and other payables
2018 M7
£'000 £000
Trade payables - Media services 3,345 4218
Trade payabies - Film produchon compamnes 1,763 4,909
Corporation tax payabie 794 -
Vae added tax 2,902 3823
Other payables 842 1,545
Accruals 4,842 10,852
Amounts due to parent company 3,124 2043
Caprial expenditure reiatad payables 4,536 5,986
Deferred royalty 635 835
Deferred income - Media services 25,802 18,637
Deferred income - Film production compamies 37 1,013
48,762 53,681
—— ———

Amounts due to parent company bear nterest at 4 05% and have no foced repayment terms.
No fixed security has been given In respect of any of the items listed above.
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Obligations under leases

Opersting leases as lessee
Future minumum rentals payabie on the Group’s non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017 are as follows:

2013 2017

£000 £'000

Within one vear 470 1.108
After one year but not more than five years 1,490 4,000
After five years but not more than 20 years - 4,258
1,960 9,376

During the year two of the Group’s property rental agreements were cancelled. The landiords released the group from
obligabions under these lease agreements and no payments under the operating lease agreements are due after 31 March
2018 (2017 - £7.4m)

Cperating leases as lessor
Future minimum rentels receivable urider non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are

as follows

2018 2017
£000 £'000
Within one year 9,975 B
After one year but not more than five years 33,018 -
—208 —_—

Durng the year the Group leased a part of its freehold premises 1o an unconnected company for 5 years.

Finance leases as lessee
Obligations under finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relate The future mmimum lease payments as
at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £000
Within one year 580 824
Afler one year but not more than five years 167 741

747 1565

Related party transactions

The Group has elected not to disclose related party transactions enterad wito between wholly owned members of its wider
group in accordance with paragraph 331A of FRS 102,
The Group's subsidiary undertakings are listed in Note 4 to the Parent Company financial statements.

A number of the Group's subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit, these are listed in Note 4 to the
Parent Company financial statements

Transactions between the Group and its related parties are disclosed below:

2018 2017

£000 £'000
Sales to jointly controlied entities 814 3,083
Purchases from jointly controlied entities 4911 242
Amounts cwed to jointly controlied entities [ 27
Amounts owed by jointly controfied entibes 564 178

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

On 4 October 2016, Pinewood Group pic was acquired by Picture Hokdco Limited, whose ultimate parent undertaking and
controlling party is PW Real Estate Fund 11l GP Limited, in its capacity as General Partner of PW Real Estate Fund it LP

On 5 October 2016, Pinewood Group pic re—registered from a public insted compeny and became Pinewood Group
Limited

The registered office address of Picture Holdco Limited 15 4th Floor, 18 St Swithin's Lane, London, England, EC4N 8AD
Picture Hoidco Limitex 1s the onily parent of Pinewood Group Limited which prepares consclidated financial statements,
and these will be pubhcly available at Companies House
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2018

Current Kabilities
Trade and other paysbles

Totsl lisbilitles
Total equity and Uabilities

As permitted by saction 408{4) of the Companies Act 2006, the C

0~

5,744
78,606
135

2,057
86,484

1,784
251,223

116,833
116,833

368,058

-

weny has slected not to p

for the yesr. The loss of the Compeny for the year was £3,284,000 (yeer snded 31 March 2017: profit of £3,138,000).

The financial statements of Pinewood Group Limied {regisiered number: 3880552) wers approved end authorised for isaue by
mm«mmammm' ware signed on its behalf by:

e
Dimctor

The notes on pages 40 to 47 form parl of these financial stalements.
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2018

At 01 April 2017
Loss for the year
Translation reserve movement

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Equity dnvidends
At 31 March 2018

At 01 April 2016
Profit for the year
Translation reserve movemnent

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Equity drvidends
At 31 March 2017

Translation
Share capitai Share premium reserve Other reserves  Retained eamings  Total equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
5,741 76,695 1,240 483 17,891 102,151
- - - - (3.284) (3,284)
- - (453) - - (453)
- - (453) - (3,284) (3.737)
- - - - (11,950) {11,850}
5,741 76,696 857 483 2,657 05,464
5,741 76,696 - 483 18,367 101,287
- - - - 3,138 3,138
- - 1,340 - - 1,340
- - 1,340 - 3138 4,478
. - - - (3,614) {3.614)
S5, /41 76,696 1,340 483 17,861 102,151

The notes on pages 40 to 47 form part of these financial staternents



Pinewood Group Limited
Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Pinewood Group Limted ("the Company™ 1s a private company limited by shares incorporated and dormciled in England  The
G d office is located at P »d Studics, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, Buckinghamshire, SLO ONH.

1 Accounting policies

The pnncipal accounting policies are summearised baiow They have all been applied consisiently throughout the cument
year and pricr year

Accounting convention

These financal statements have been prapared in accordance with FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable i the UK and Republic of Ireland’ ("FRS 1027} and the requirements of the Companes Act 2006, inciuding the
provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Comparves and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, and under
historical cast convention,

This company is s qualifying entity for the purpeses of FRS 102, being & mermber of a group where the parent of that
group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, inciuding this company, winch are intended to give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group The company has therefore
taken advaniage of exemptions from the foflowang disclosure requirements

+ Section 4 ‘Statement of Financial Position’ — Reconciliation of the opening and closing number of sheres,

+ Seachon 7 ‘Steterment of Cash Flows’ — Presentahon of a statement of cash flow and related notes and disclosures;

- Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments’ and Saction 12 'Other Financiad Instnuament Issues’ — Carryng amounts, sterest
ncome/expense and net gains/iosses for each category of financial wistrument, basis of determining faw values, detaiis of
coliatersl, details of Medges, hadang far value changes recognised in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income,
+ Sechon 33 'Related Party Drsclosures’ — Compensabion for key management personnel.

The financial statements of the comperny ane consolidated in the financial statements on pages 11 to 35.

Going concem

No matenal uncertainties that meay cast significant doubt on the abdity of the Company to coninue as a goshg concerm into
the foreseeable futures have been identified by the Directors, Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared or
the going concem basis

Fixed assets investments
Investments in subsidianes and joint ventures are stated mitiatly &t cost The cammying values are reviewed for impairments
if events or chahges in arcumstances indicete the carrying values may not be recoverable

Financial instryments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogmsed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into An equity Instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities,

Financial assets and Sabiites

All financial assets and labilibes are inibally measured at transaction pnce (including transachon costs), except for those
finencial assets ciassified as af far vaiue through profit or loss, which are initiadly measured at fair vaiue (which is normally
the transaction price exciuding transaction cosis), unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. If an
arangement constitutes a finance transaction, the financial asset or financsai liability 1S measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a simitar debt nstrument.

Firancial assets are derecogmaed when and only when a) the contractuai nghts to the cash fiows from the financral asset
expire or are settled, b} the Group transfers to another party substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or ¢) the Group, despite having retained some significant nsks and rewards of ownersip, has transferred
control of the asset (o another party and the other party has the practical ability 1o selt the asset in its entirety to an
unrefated third party and 1s abié to exercise thai absity unitaterally and without neediing to impose additional restrichons on
the transfer.

Financia/ kabiiities are derecogmsed only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelied or expirss.
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Equity instrumernits
Equity mstruments issued by the Company are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, cash or other resources
received or recervable, net of direct issue costs '

Intarest-bearing loans and borrowings

Obtigations for loans and borrowings are recognised when the Company becomes party to the refated contracts and are
measured indtially at the fair vahues of consideration received less directly attnbutable transaction costs After initial
recognition, interest-bearing ioans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant penod. The loan issue costs are
amortised int the income statement over the remaimng maturity of the loans at a constant carrying amount and are
reviewed for changes in circumstancas that may indicate that the loans will not be held to maturity

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires managernent to make |udgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts at the reporting date

Estimates, assumptions and Axigements are apphied by the Company. These inciude, but are not limited to, accruals and
provisions for impaimments of assets These estmates, assumplions and judgements are alsc evaiuaied on a continual
basis but are not significant.

Profit and loss
As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own income

statement for the year The loss of the Company for the year was £3,284,000 (year ended 31 March 2017 profit of
£3,138,000).

Staff costs and numbers
2018 2017
Staff costs including Directors £000 £'000
Salaries 1,609 2,172
Soaal securty costs 195 203
Pension costs 62 76
Other employee benefits 43 66
2,109 2,517
Average monthly number of empioyees, 2018 2017
including Executive Directors: numbers numbers.
Managerment 1 3
Administration 7 7
Executive 2 3
10 13
Investments
£000
Cost and net book vaiue
At 31 March 2017 32,956
Additions 50

At 31 March 2018 — 3506
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4

Investments {continued)

Subsidiaries

Detasts of nvestments in which the Company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of ordinary share capdal (or other
ctass of share capital where marked 2, see below) are as follows

Company fiame

Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited™?
Pmewood PSB Limited”

Pinewood Film Advisors Limited’
Pinewood Filrn Advisors (W) Limited'

PSL Consuiting Lirnited

Pwewood Studio Wales Limited

Pinewood Germany Limited

Pinewood Filn Services GmbH™

Pinewood Dominvcan Republic Limited
Pinewood Malaysia Limited

Pinewcod USA Inc.*

Pinewood Fiim Produchon Studios Canada Inc
Pinewocd Production Services Canada inc
Pinswood Filrms Limited

Pinewood Robot Overloris Limrted
Pinewood Riot Club Limited
Pinewood Pressure Limited®
Pinewood KYF Limited”

Pinewood Fitms No 10 Lirmted
Pinewood Filma No. 11 Limsteq
Pinewood Filme No 12 Limited
Pinewood Fims No. 13 Limited
Pmewood Films No. 14 Lxmted
Where Hands Touch (FPC) Limvied
Pinewood Films No 16 Limited*
The Studios Unit Trust®
Shepperton Studios Property Partnership?
Pinewood Finco PLC'S

Principal Activity
Holding company
Property development
Film snvestment advice
Film investment advice
Film studic services
Filtm studio services
Property investment
Dormant

Property investment
Property investment
Property support
Property support

Fitrm services

Film services

41

% oquity
Interest
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
106%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Investments {continued)

Subsidiaries {continued)

"Directly heid.
Anvestment held as follows
o Pinewood Shepperton Studios Limted - 17,830 ordinary shares of 5p each with a nominal value of
£692 and 942 700 redeemabie shares of 10p each with a nominal value of £94,270 Further detaits
inciuded in the subsdiary financial statements of Pinewood Shepperton Studkos Limited.
o The Studios Unit Trust - units held in Jersey Property Unit Trust by Baltray No 1 Limited and Baltray
No 2 Limited
o Shepperton Studics Property Partnership - Limited Partnership in which Baitray No 1 Limited and the
Studics Unit Trust are Limited Partners
At the date of approval of these financial statements, these companies have active proposals to strike off
*The reporting date for Pinewood Film Services GmbH and Pinewood USA Inc is 31 Decernber and for Pinewood Films
No 16 Limted 1s 28 February.
SOn 8 Novemnber 2017, the company purchased 100% of the shares of Pinewood Finco PLC upon the entity's
incorporation.
The registered office of the subsidiaries (or local equivalent} are as follows:

o All United Kingdom subsidianes - Pinewood Studios, Pinewood Road, Iver Heath, SLO ONH, England

o The Studios Urut Trust - 47 Esplanade, St. Helier, Jersey JE1 08D

o All Insh subsidianes - Second Floor, 10 South Anne Street, Dublin 2, Ireland

o Pinewood Film Services GmbH — c/o Greenfort Partnerschafl von Rechisarmwdlten, Arndtstraiie 28 e
28, 60325 Frankiurt am Mam, Germany

o Pinewood LUSA Inc. and Pinewood Media Guarantors Insurance Services LLC — ¢/o Katterr Munchin
Rosenman LLP, 2029 Century Park East, Suite 2600, L.os Angeles, CA 80067, USA

o Pinewood Production Services Canada Inc - 225 Commissioners Street, Toronto, ON M4&M 0A1,
Canada

o Pinewood Fim Production Studios Canada Inc Suite 2600, Three Bentall Centre, PO Box 49314,
585 Burrard Street, Vancouver BC, V7X 1L3, Cenada

Joint vertures
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had mterests in the following joint ventures

Principal

place of % voting
Company name business % equity interest rights
Pinewood Atlanta LLC USA 40% 50%
PAS Holdings Fayeite LLC USA 40% 50%

None of the investments in joint ventures is directly held. The accounting reference date for the two joint ventures is 31
December

All pint venture interests are indirectly helkd The registered office of Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette
LLC is 461 Sandy Creek Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214, USA.

Other investments
The Group owns 15% of the share capital of PMBS Hokdings Litd PMBS Hokdings Lid owns 100% of Pinewood MBS

Lighting Limited The Comparvy also has an indirect investment in POP Global Limited amounting to 12.5% of the share
capital POP Global Limited owns 100% of We Got Pop Limrted
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4  investments (continued)

Aodit exemption

Pinewood Group Limited has given statutory guaraniees against all the outstanding habilifies of the below Iisted wholly-
owned subsicharies at 31 March 2018 under Sechion 479A, of the Companies Act 2006, thereby aliowing these subsidiaries
to be exempt from the annual audit requirement for the year ended 31 March 2018

Although the Company does not anbcipate the guararees to be called upon, the book velues of the guaranteed liabilities,
excluding niragroup balances, for each relevant subsidiary at 31 March 2018 are set out below

! Liabilities to non-

Company name number group entities

£000
Balray No 1 Limitad Q5776674 96
Baltray No.2 Lirnted 05778635 -
Pinewood Camera Trap Limited 08153323 -
Pinewood Deminican Republic Limited 07006246 27
Pinewood Films Limited 07660856 -
Pinewocod Fims Ne 19 Limited 08818148 7
Pinewood Fims No 13 Limited 09006529 12
Pinewood Malaysia Lymited 07074448 88
Pinewood Media Developrent Limited 09592018 -
Pinewocod Riot Cluby Lirted 08446929 -
Pnewood Robot Overlords. Linmited 08370083 -
Pinewood PSB Limited 06300755 15,837
Pinewood Studio Wales Limited 08883162 121
PSL Consutting Limited 08655214 156
Shepperton Management Limted 05907027 -
Shepperton Studios (General Partnes) Limited 05913009 -
Pinewood Germany Limited 07079399 -
Pinewood Camera Trap Limited 08153323 2
Pnewood Robot Overlords Linvted 08370083 2
Pinewood Riot Club Limived 08448829 -

Pinewood Shepperton Facilities Limited 07527390 -
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Trade and other receivables
2018 2m7
£'000 £'000
Amount falling due within one year:
Prepayments and accrued mcome 66 47
Loars due from subsidiary undertakings 36,414 36,414
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 223,389 242,009
259,869 278,470
Amount falling due after more than one year:
Loans due from parent undertakings 129,045 -
129,045 -
388,914 278,470

Intragroup baiances are repayabie on demand anxt interest 18 charged at 4 05% (2017 3.1%). The icans due from the
parent company are repayable on 1 December 2023 and carry interest charged at 4 05% (2017 nil) The loans due from
subsidiary undertakings are repayabie on demand and mterest is charged at 4.5% (2017 4 5%)

Share capital

2018 2017
Issuwed, calfed up and fully paid £000 £000
57,409,926 Ordinary shares of 10p each 5,741 5,741

The Ordinary shares, which camy no right to fixed income, each carry the nght to one vote at general meetings of the
Company

Interest bearing toans and borrowings

Maturity 2018 2017
£000 £000
Current Borrowings
Bank overdraft Annual renewal - -
Non-Current Borrowings -
Term loan facility 26 May 2019 - 100,000
Revoiving credit facility 1 June 2023 - -
Asset financing 5 November 2015 724 1,504
Loan from subsidiary undertaking 41 December 2023 250,000 -
Non-current drawn loan facilities 250,724 101,504
Secured bank loan arrangement costs {1,282) (438)
249,442 101,066
Total current and non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 249,442 101,088

The loan from subsidiary undertaking carnes interest at 3.75% and is repayable on 1 December 2023

Details of effective interest rates, total facilities, security, repayment, covenants are listed in Note 21 of the consolidated
Group financial statements acoounts above.
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8 Derivative financial instruments

The Company’s interest rate swaps are recognised as denvative finencial insttuments Fair value movements are
recognised in the income staternent withen interest payable and similar charges.

Further details can be found in Note 22 1o the consolidated Group financial statements.

2018 2047
£'000 £'060
Financial liabilities camed at fair value: [
Nor-current dervative financal instrument lisbites 1,781 3,687
. X
9 Trade and other payables
2018 2m7
£000 £'000
Cther creditors 1,538 4,992
Amounts due to parent undertakings 75 150
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 116,223 104,011
“ﬁm 109,153

Intragroup balances are repeyable on demand and interest 1s charged at 4.05% (2017 3.1%).

10 Related party transactions

The Company has elected not to disciose reisted party transactions entered nto between whotly owned members of s
wider group in accordance with paragraph 331A of FRS 102
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11 Contingent liability

The Company has committed to prowide financial support to several of its wholly owned subsudiary undertakings in a net
current fiability posrhon to an amount as may be required to enable each subsidiary to fulfil ts operabonal commitments o
meet liabilites as and when they fall due and carry on their business as a going concern  Where it 1s required, Pinewcod
Group Limited intends to exiend such support for a further 12 months from the date the current commitments expire as

shown below.

Expiration date of financial
Company name support
Baltray No.1 Limited 6 March 2019
Baltray MNo.2 Limited 6 March 2018
Pinewocd Films Limited 14 December 2018
Pinewood Fitm Advisors (W) Lirmted 14 December 2018
Pinewood Germany Limited 11 April 2018
Pinewood Media Development Limited 15 December 2018
Pinewocd PSE Linuted ' 15 December 2018
Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Lirnited 15 December 2018
Pinewood Studios Linted 15 December 2018
Pinewocd Studic Wales Limited 15 Decermber 2018
Shepperton Studios Limited 15 Decermber 2018
Pinewood Firn Advisors Limited 27 July 2018

The Company, together with certam subsidiary uncertakings had at the financial statement date granted a cross
guarantee in favour of its bankers m respect of the bank borrowngs of the Group.

The guarantee was secured by a floating charge which as at 31 March 2018 was £252 505,000 (2017 £105,390,000}.

The loan notes issued during the year within the financal statements. of the Group are secured by fixed and floating
charges over the trade and assets of the group headed by Picture Holdco Lumited, of which the company is a member

12 Utimate parent undertaking and controlling party

On 4 October 2015, Pinewood Group pic was acquired by Picture Holdeo Limsed, whose ultimate parent undertalung and
controliing party 1s PV Real Estate Fund Ill GP Limsted, in its capacrty as Generat Partner of PW Real Estate Fund Ul LP

On 5 October 2016, Pinewood Group pic re-registered from a public limfied company and became Pinewood Group
Limited

The registered office address of Picture Hoidco Limited 1s 4th Floor, 18 St. Swithin's Lane, London, England, EC4N BAD
Picture Holdco Limited is the parent of the largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared which include the
resuits of Pinewood Group Limiled, and these will be publicty available at Companies House The smallest group for
which consoiidated accounts are prepared 18 for Pinewood Group Limited which are shown on pages 13 to 38 of these
financial statements
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